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CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT.LTD.

Registered Office : Apex Plaza, 1st Floor, # 3, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600 034.
Phone : 61991060 Fax : 61991066 e-mail : tulsyannecltd@vsnl,net. tulsyannec@gmail.com

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 19" Annual General Meeting of Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private
Limited will be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. at the Registered office of the
Company situated at 1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road,
Chennai-600034, Tamil Nadu, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2022 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors for the FY 2022-23.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 139, 141 and 142(1) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the
retiring auditors, Messrs. C.A. Patel & Patel, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 005026S), Chennai, be
and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in addition to
the out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them during the course of the Audit for the
financial year ending March 31, 2023."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To ratify and approve the existing limit of Related Party Transactions with Tulsyan NEC Limited.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, and subject to such approvals, consents, sanctions
and permissions as may be necessary, approval of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to
the Board of Directors of the Company to enter / continue to enter into Related. Party
Transaction(s) / Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s)/ Agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual.
transaction or transactions taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) with Tulsyan
NEC Limited, its holding company and a related party within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the
Act, for purchase / sale of goods and services, any income or expenses, applicable taxes, if any,
incurred in these connections and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may
deem fit up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 300 crores for a period of 2 years starting from
the conclusion of 74th AGM of Tulsyan NEC Limited till the conclusion of the 76th AGM of Tulsyan
NEC Limited, such that the maximum value of the Related Party Transactions with such party, in
aggregate, does not exceed value, as specified below, under each category for the said period,
provided that the said contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried out in the
ordinary course of business of the Company and are at arm’s length basis;
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Name of | Nature of | Nature of | Value of | Period for which shareholders’

the relationship contract/ transaction | approval is sought for the
related arrangement/ transaction

party ' Transaction

Tulsyan Holding . Purchase of goods Rs. 150 For a period of 2 years starting
NEC Company and services Crores from the conclusion of 74th AGM
Limited ' - | of Tulsyan NEC Limited till the

conclusion of the 76th AGM of -
Tulsyan NEC Limited

Tulsyan Holding Sale of goods and Rs. 150 For a period of 2 years starting
NEC Company services Crores from the conclusion of 74th AGM
Limited ‘of Tulsyan NEC Limited till the

conclusion of the 76th AGM of
Tulsyan NEC Limited

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and to
take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing

- hecessary documents, contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such other documents as may
be required, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of
the Company and settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may
arise and to take all such decisions from powers herein conferred to, without being required to
seek further consent or approval of the Members and that the Members shall be deemed to have
given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter
referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed
in all respects.”

By Order of the Board
For Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

__C—a/"uf""»‘ X orn AAMN )
Place: Chennai ' Sanjay Agarwalla
Date: May 18, 2022 Director

(DIN 00632864)

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE GENERAL MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF,
AND THAT SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person
can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A
member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

2. The Proxy form duly filled in should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. All
alterations/corrections made in the form of Proxy should be initialed by the Member.

3. As per Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Members intending to send
their representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send the Company a certified
copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their
behalf at the Meeting.




4. As per Secretarial Standards-2 (SS-2), Attendance Slip and a Proxy Form are attached
with the Notice hereunder as an Annexure-1 & 2 respectively.

5. As per Secretarial Standards-2 (SS-2), Route Map for easy access to location of the venue
of the Meeting is attached herein as an Annexure-3.

6. Pursuant to Sections 101(1) and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 18 of Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time, companies can now send notice of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting to their Members, Auditors and Directors / documents including the
Annual Report to their Members through electronic mode, to their e-mail addresses
registered with the Company. Members who would like to receive such notices /
documents including the Annual Report in electronic mode in lieu of physical copy and who
have not registered their e-mail addresses so far or who would like to update their e-mail
addresses already registered with the Company, are requested to register/update their e-
mail addresses by sending a request at investor@tulsyannec.in , mentioning therein their
folio number and e-mail address so as to enable the Company to send the Notice of the
General Meeting and Annual Report through Electronic Mode to their registered e-mail
addresses. .

7. Explanatory Statement as required under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in
respect of items of special business to be transacted at this AGM is annexed hereto.

Explanatory Statement in respect of the Special Business
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

The following statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the
accompanying Notice.

Item No.3: To ratify and approve the existing limit of Related Party Transactions with
Tulsyan NEC Limited:

Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited (“the Company”) is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Tulsyan
NEC Limited whose primary business is manufacturing of Sponge Iron.

Tulsyan NEC Limited is a Holding Company of the Company whose primary business is manufacturing
iron and steel, Poly woven fabric and sacks and Generation of power in thermal based. During the
course of rendering such businesses, Tulsyan NEC Limited Integrated also leverages niche skills,
capabilities and resources of entities within the “Tulsyan Group”.

Accordingly, transaction(s) entered / to be entered into with Tulsyan NEC Limited comes within the
meaning of Related Party transaction(s) in terms of provisions of the Act and applicable Rules framed
thereunder.

The Company had taken prior approval of the members in its 18" AGM held on September 30, 2021
pertaining to the contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with Tulsyan NEC Limited, a related
party within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 300
Crores for a period of 2 years starting from the conclusion of 74th AGM of Tulsyan NEC Limited till the
conclusion of the 76th AGM of Tulsyan NEC Limited.

Though the related party transactions made or to be made by the company is covering under section
188 of the companies Act, 2013 are in ordinary course of business and are at arms’ length basis and
were already approved in the 18™ AGM of the Company, the board recommended for shareholder’s
approval by passing an Ordinary Resolution to follow good corporate governance practice.




Accordingly, the Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out at Item No.3 of the
accompanying Notice for approval by the shareholders.

It is pertinent to note that no related party shall vote to approve this Resolution whether the entity is
a related party to the particular transaction or not.

Except Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan, Mr. Lalit Kumar Tulsyan and Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla and their respective
relatives, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is in any way
interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

Relevant documents are available for inspection in the Company during business hours till the date of
the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till
date, particulars of the transactions with Tulsyan NEC Limited are as follows:

1. Name of the Related Party: Tulsyan NEC Limited

2. Name of the Director or KMP who is related: Mr. Sanjay Tulsyan (Director); Mr. Lalit Kumar
Tulsyan (Director); and Mr. Sanjay Agarwalla (Director)

3. Nature of Relationship: Holding Company '

4. Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or arrangement:
Transactions for purchase / sale of goods and services, any income or expenses, applicable taxes,
if any, incurred in these connections, and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors
may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 300 crores for a period of 2 years starting
from the conclusion of 74th AGM of Tulsyan NEC Limited till the conclusion of the 76th AGM of
Tulsyan NEC Limited.

5. Any other information relevant or important for the members to take a decision on the proposed
resolution: Nil.

By Order of the Board
For Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

— o (1 A_ML,Q_Q
Place: Chennai - Sanjay Agarwalla
Date: May 18, 2022 Director
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Annexure-1
ATTENDANCE SLIP

19™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY TO BE HELD ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AT

10.00 A.M.

Reg. Folio No. / Client ID

DP ID

No. of Shares

I hereby record my presence at the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the

Registered Office of the Company at 1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam
High Road, Chennai-600034, at 10.00 a.m. on Friday, September 30, 2022.

Name of the Member /
Proxy Holder /
Representative

Address of the Member /
Proxy Holder /
Representative

Signature of the Member /
Proxy Holder /
Representative

Notes:

1. Only Member/ Proxy holder / Representative can attend the Meeting. ‘
2. Please complete the Folio No./DP ID No./Client ID No. and name of the Member/Proxy holder/
Representative and sign this Attendance Slip and hand it over, duly signed, at the entrance of

the Meeting Hall.

3. A Member/Proxy holder/Representative attending the meeting should bring copy of the Notice

for reference at the meeting.




Annexure-2

Form MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 ] ‘

Name of the Company : Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited
CIN : U28999TN2003PTC051803
Registered office: : 1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77 Nungambakkam High Road,

Chennai-600034

I/We, being the member(s) holding shares of the above named company,

hereby appoint

1. Name :

Address :
E-mail ID :
Signature :

or failing him

2.  Name :

Address o
E-mail ID
Signature

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 19t Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. at 1st Floor,
Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai-600034 and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as indicated below:

Resolution | Description : Optional
No. ' For Against
ORDINARY BUSINESS ‘
1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial

statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 and the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2 Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors for the FY 2022-23.
SPECIAL BUSINESS
3 To ratify and approve the existing limit of Related Party

Transactions with Tulsyan NEC Limited.




Signed this ........ccccevvuvanens day of .oeeveiiinninnnn, 2022

Signature of shareholder: ...........viviviiiiiiiiiii et er e e e Affix

‘ Revenue
Signature of Proxy holder(s): .....cccevvevreinerrnrennnnn rersenrend veevarersionas IR Stamp
Note

1. This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting;

2. Itis an optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the 'For' or 'Against’ column blank
against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she
think appropriate;

3. Members may note that a person shall not act as a Proxy for more than 50 members and
holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total voting share capital of the
Company. However, a single person may act as a Proxy for a member holding more than ten
percent of the total voting share capital of the Company provided that such person shall not
act as a Proxy for any other person.




Annexure-3
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CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVI.LID.

Registered Office : Apex Plaza, 1st Floor, # 3, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai - 600 034.
Phone : 61991060 Fax : 61991066 e-mail : tulsyannecltd@vsnl,net. tulsyannec@gmail.com

Boards’ Report

Dear Members,
Your Directors take immense pleasure in presenting the Board’s Report of your Company along with

the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements and the Auditor’s Report of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2022 Year ended 31.03.2021

(In Rs.) (In Rs.)
Gross Income 1,01,15,97,909 70,56,92,248
Gross Expenses 99,81,68,529 69,52,99,992
Profit / (Loss) for the year 1,04,90,537 (2,26,43,749)
(After tax)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

During the financial year under review, the performance of your company was quite satisfactory as
compared to the last year. Your Company had earned a net profit of Rs. 1,04,90,537 as compared to a
net loss of Rs. (2,26,43,749) in the preceding financial year. Further, the Turnover of your company
was comparatively high. During the financial year under review, Turnover of your company was Rs.
1,01,11,16,449 as compared to Rs. 70,55,52,368 in the preceding financial year. Further, total
expenses incurred by the company during the financial year were comparatively high as compared to
the previous year. Your company incurred total expenses of Rs. 99,81,68,529 as compared to Rs.
69,52,99,992 in the preceding financial year.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDI NDIN ND THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The company has not made any application under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 for any
resolution during the financial year under review nor any application for insolvency proceeding has
been made against the company.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

There was no such event occurred in the Company during the financial year under review.

Works : Survey No.77, Thandalacherry Road, Next to TCP Ltd, New Gummidpoondi - 601 201.
Tel. : 27921541 / 42 Fax : 27921543 CIN U28999TN2003 PTC 051803




INDUSTRIES SCEN‘ARIO AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The vision of the company is to expand its existing business.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the company’s nature of business during the year under review.
DIVIDEND

During the financial year, the Company has not recommended any payment as dividend to its
shareholders.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
No amount is proposed to be transferred to reserves for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Your Company does. not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company as on the date of
this report.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

There was no unpaid/unclaimed dividend to be transferred to IEPF Account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND MMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred
between March 31, 2022 and the date of this report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

An Extract of Annual Return for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 as required under section
92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as an “Annexure-1."

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, 4 (four) Board meetings were held in accordance
with the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is summarized below. The
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 were adhered to while considering the time gap between two
meetings.

Sl Date of Meeting Board Strength - No. of Directors Present
No.

1 30-06-2021 4 4

2 09-08-2021 4 4

3 12-11-2021 4 4

4 14-02-2022 4 4




DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and
loss of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ITS ADEQUACY
The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company

and nature of its business with regard to the purchase of inventories, fixed assets and sale of goods
and services.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

The Auditors, M/s. C.A. Patel & Patel, Chartered Accountants, Chennai, retiring at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment for a period of one
year from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting [AGM] till the conclusion of the next
AGM.

The Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2022 is unmodified i.e. it does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer.

Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the year, the statutory auditors have not reported any material fraud on the Company by its

officers or employees under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the details of which need to
be provided in this report.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, for the FY 21-22, are disclosed under the notes to the Financial Statements
forming part of this Annual Report.




PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were no significant related party transactions entered between the Company, Directors,
Management and their relatives, except for those disclosed in the financial statements. All the
contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company with the related parties during FY
2021-22 were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis, and whenever required
the Company has obtained necessary approval for the said transactions.

Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1)
along with the justification for entering into such a contract or arrangement in Form AOC-2 does not
form a part of this Report. -

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

A statement containing particulars in terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable to the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

EARNIN T

Particulars as per the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended on
March 31, 2022.

A. Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the
nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo _
There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk threatening the
Company’s existence are very minimal.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year, there was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of your Company.

DEPOSITS

During the year, the company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL
The paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was Rs.6,48,92,000.
SIGNIFICANT / MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the financial year, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals, impacting the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future.




SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to prevent and prohibit any form of
sexual harassment at workplace and to provide redressal for woman employees as required under .
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the financial year, no complaints of sexual harassment were filed and no complaint is pending
for closure as per the timelines of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

GENERAL

The Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). : ‘

Further, as per the requirement under the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2018, a
disclosure regarding maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We place on record our appreciation for the committed services by every member associated with the
Company whose contribution was significant to the growth and success of the Company. We would like
to thank all our shareholders, customers, suppliers, vendors, bankers, financial institutions and other
business associates, executives, staffs and workers at all levels for their continued support and
encouragement during the year.

We also thank the Government of India and Government of Tamil Nadu, Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs, Income Tax Department, and all other regulatory
agencies for their assistance and co-operation during the year and look forward to their continued
support in the future.

By Order of the Board
For Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

Place: Chennai /s/gff/ ’ L(-'LM_S crrrr S
Date: May 18, 2022 e anjay Tulsyan Sanj ng rwalla ’

Director . Director
(DIN: 00632802) (DIN: 00632864)
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Annexure-1

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. | CIN U28999TN2003PTC051803

2. | Registration Date 21/10/2003

3. | Name of the Company Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

4. | Category/Sub-category of Private Company Limited by Shares
the Company Non-govt Company

5. | Address of the Registered 1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3, New No.77 Nungambakkam High
office & contact details Road, Chennai-600034

Phone: 044-61991060; Fax: 044-61991066
Email: investor@tulsyannec.in

6. | Whether listed company No

7. | Name, Address & contact NIL

details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 %
or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

SI. No, | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
products / services Product/service | company
1 Manufacture of Sponge Iron 2410 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sl. Name and Address of the CIN/GLN Holding / % of | Applicable
No. Company ' Subsidiary / | shares section
Associate held
1 Tulsyan NEC Limited L28920TN1947PLC007437|Holding Company] 100 2(46)

1st Floor, Apex Plaza, Old No.3,
New No.77 Nungambakkam High
Road, Chennai-600034 '

Works : Survey No.77, Thandalacherry Road, Next to TCP Ltd, New Gummidpoondi - 601 201.
Tel. : 27921541 / 42 Fax : 27921543 CIN U28999TN2003 PTC 051803




Category-wise Share Holding

A) Category-wise Share Holding:

" IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginnihg
of the year [As on 01-April-2021]

No. of Shares held at the end of the
year [As on 31-March-2022]

Physical

Demat

Total

% of

 Total

Shares

Physical

Demat

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the
year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Indlvrdual/
HUF

0 10

10

- 10

10

b) Central Govt

¢) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp.

0 6489190

6489190

0 6489190

6489190

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other ‘

Total
shareholding
of Promoter

(A)

0 | 6489200

6489200

0 | 6489200

6489200

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FlIIs

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions -

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Indlviduals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh




ii) Individual - - -
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh '

c) Others - - -
(specify)

Non Resident - : - -
Indians

Overseas - - -
Corporate
Bodies

Foreign - - -
Nationals

Clearing - - -

Members

Trusts - -

Foreign Bodies - -. - -
DR

Sub-total 0 0 0
(B)(2):-

Total Public 0 0 0
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares held - - -
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total 0| 6489200 | 6489200
(A+B+C)

100

0 | 6489200

6489200

100 NIL

B) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl

No.

Shareholder’s

Name. of the year

Shareholding at the beginning

Shareholding at the end of the year - %

change
in

No. of % of

%of
-Shares total Shares
Shares | Pledged /
of the | encumber
compa ed to

. ny total
shares

Shares

No. of' % of total
Shares of

the

company

%of Shares | shareho
Pledged / Iding
encumbered during

to total the year
shares

Tulsyanv NEC 6489190 100
Limited :

NIL 6

489190 | 100

NIL NIL

Sanjay Tulsyan 10 0
(holding on .
behalf of
Tulsyan NEC
Limited)

NIL

10 0

NIL NIL

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding: Nil

SN | Particulars ‘Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total .
shares shares of shares shares of the
: the company
company
At the beginning of the year 6489200 100 | 6489200 100
Date- wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the ycar
specifying the reasons for increase / NIL NIL NIL NIL
decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year : 64BQZOQ 100 | 6489200 100




D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs): Nil .

SN | For Each of the Top 10 : Shareholding at the Cumulative
Shareholders , beginning Shareholding during
of the year the
: . year
No. of % of total | No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
o the the
: company company
At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters :
Shareholding during the year specifying the NIL NIL NIL NIL
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. ’
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
ete):
At the end of the year 0 0 ] 0 0

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and each | Shareholding at the Cumulative
Key Managerial Personnel beginning ' Shareholding during
of the year the
. year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the | shares shares of
’ company the
v company
1 Sanjay Tulsyan (holding on behalf of Tulsyan
NEC Limited)
At the beginning of the year 10 0 10 0
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the NIL NIL NIL NIL
reasons for increase /decrease (e.qg.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc.):
At the end of the year 10 0 v 10 » 0

INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstandmg/accrued but not due for
payment (Rs. In lakhs)

Secured
Ie-::;:l i" ng Unsecured Loans Deposits I::laelbte dness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year ’ :
_ 19,85,00,883 53,77,593 - 20,38,78,476
i) Principal Amount :
19,61,633 - - 19,61,633
ii) Interest due but not paid '
iii) Interest accrued but not due
4 20,04,62,516 53,77,593 - 20,58,40,109
Total (i+ii+iii) ‘
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year : : )
77,23,603 - - 77,23,603
* Addition ‘
* Reduction
77,23,603 ‘ - - 77,23,603
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
20,62,24,486 53,77,593 - 21,16,02,079
) Principal Amount -




19,61,633

19,61,633 - -
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
B 20,81,86,119 53,77,593 - 21,35,63,712
Total (i+ii+iii)

VI.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL

B. Remuneration to other Directors - NIL

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD -~ NIL

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL
Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ if any (give
Act Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Place: Chennai

Date: May 18, 2022

By Order of the Board
For Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited

S
anjay Agarwalla

Director
(DIN: 00632864)

, anjay Tulsyan
Director
(DIN: 00632802)




o C.A. PATEL & PATEL

) Chartered Accountants
B 442 (Old No. 602), Anna Salai,
' “A” Wing Ground Floor, No. 4,
Parsn Manere, Chennai — 600 006.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members
Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of
Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under Section 133
of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March
2022, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Ph: 044-42144887, M- 8940808039 , Email : auditorcapatel@gmail.com



Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('ICAT) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters.

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, key audit matters are not applicable to
the company as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

“In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.




Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
standalone financial statements

7.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to

" the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements
10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be




expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the ss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.




12.

13.

14.

16.

17.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the ‘Order’) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give
in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act,
we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;




d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act;

f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
(IFCoFR) of the Company as on 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date and our report as per Annexure B expressed an unmodified opinion;

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law
or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2022

for C.A.Patel&Patel
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
N 0:005026S

Place: Chennai havesh N Patel.
Date : 18% May, 2022 Proprietor
UDIN:22026669ALFIOV5742 Je am\x;ﬁ.{}fﬁembershlp No: 026669



i)

ii)

ii)

iv)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report On Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the members of Chitrakoot Steel and Power
Private Limited of even date:

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets, by
which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion
of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the name of
the Company. In respect of immovable properties been taken on lease and disclosed as
property, plant and equipment in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the lease
agreements are in the name of the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The Company has maintained
proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the
physical stock and the book records were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security.




v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act,
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
requirement for maintenance of cost records pursuant to the companies (Cost
Records and Audit ) Rules ,2014 specified by the Central Government of India under
Section 148 of the Companies Act,2013 are not applicable to the company for the year
under audit.

vii) a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with appropriate
authorities like Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax,
Service tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value added tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable , with the appropriate authorities.
Further no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year
end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no dues of Income-tax or Sales tax or Service tax or Goods and Services tax or
duty of Customs or duty of Excise or Value added tax which have not been deposited by
the Company on account of disputes.

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans and borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government and dues to debenture holders.

ix) Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

X) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi) The Company is a private limited company and hence provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause 3(xii) is
not applicable. e




xiii) All the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv)The Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.
for C.A Patel&Patel
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
«Firm Registration No:005026S

! Bhavesh N Patel
7 Proprietor
Membership No: 026669

Place : Chennai
Date : 18t May,2022
UDIN:22026669ALFIOV5742



Annexure B To The Independent Auditor’s Report of even date To The Members of
Chitrakoot Steel and Power Private Limited, on The standalone financial statements
for The year ended 31 March 2022

Annexure B
Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Chitrakoot
Steel and Power Private Limited (the “Company”) as at and for the year ended 31
March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
the Company’s business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting and the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.




4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

6. A Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal financial Controls over financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAL

for M/s C.A Patel&Patel

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

F'rm.Registration\l\Ioz 0050268
—

.

Bhavesh N patel
Proprietor

‘Membership No: 026669

Place : Chennai

Date : 18" May,2022

UDIN:22026669ALFIOV5742



Nama of the Company CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PRIVATE LiMITED
v Balance Sheet as at As at March 31, 2022
(In Rupees)
r T
-« ‘ Particulars Note Ne.| AsatMarch 31, 2022 As At Mar 31, 2021
3 |. ASSETS
!
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 75,325,572 68,115,465
(b) Intangible Assets 4 17,400 25,802
(c) Financial assets
Investments 5 2,500 2,500
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 79,391,679 82,330,521
(d) Other Non Current assets 7 5,469,820 5,636,374
160,206,971 156,110,662
Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 44,907,794 31,100,151
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 9 101,219,157 111,298,343
(if) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 274,430.00 342,737.00
_ (iii) Short Term Loans and Advances 11 7,204,080 12,437,137
153,605,461 155,178,368
TOTAL 313,812,432 311,289,030
IIl. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equily Share Capital 12 64,892,000 64,892,000
(b) Other Equity 13 (217,176,121) (227,666,660)
(152,284,121) (162,774,660)
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 - 14,379,391 7,338,606
14,379,391 7,338,606
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 198,217,361 198,163,996
(i) Trade payables 16 80,555,642 83,778,616
(b) Other Current Liabilities 17 170,284,065 182,463,569
{c) Short Term Provisions 18 2,660,094 2,318,903
451,717,162 466,725,084
Notes on Financial Statements 1t041
313,812,432 311,289,030

As per our Report of even date

For C A Patel & Patel

BHAVESH N PATEL
Proprietor

M No. 026669 1
UDIN:  22026669ALFIOV57
Place : Chennai

Date: 18th May, 2022

A

SaZ: ;}g ;Nrm;; /

Director
Din : 00432864

+

/

Parvati Soni
Company Secretary

Sanjay Tulsyan
Director
Din : 00632802




Name of the Company
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended :

: CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PRIVATE LIMITED

March 31, 2022

Particulars Note No. For the year 2e‘;12dzed March 31, | Forthe year ze;zd:d March 31,
I |Income From Operations 19 1,011,116,449 705,552,368
il |Other income 20 481,460 139,880
Il [TOTAL INCOME (1+1) 1,011,597,909 705,692,248
IV | Expenses
Materials Consumed . 21 908,102,846 611,438,998
Changes in Inventory 22 1,997,791 (2,883,829)
Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Employees Benefits 23 3,909,691 4,221,402
Finance Charges 24 22,620,620 26,542,650
Depreciation & Amortisation expenses 344 4,806,666 4,384,702
Other Expenses 25 56,730,916 51,596,069
V | Total Expenses 998,168,529 695,299,992
VI | Profit before Tax ( V-VI) 13,429,380 10,392,257
VII | Tax expense
(1) Current Tax 0
(2) MAT Credit Entitlement -
(3) Deferred Tax 2,938,842 33,036,005
Vill [Profit for the Year 10,490,537 (22,643,749)
IX |Other Comprehensive income
(1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(2) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(3) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(4) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
X |Total comprehensive income for the period 10,490,537 (22,643,749)
X! |Earning per Equity Share 26
- Basic & Diluted 1.62 (3.49)
- Face Value per Share 10.00 10.00
As per our Report of even date
y P LL) )
For C A Patel & Patel M""\
Chartered Accountants Sanjay Agarwalla anjay Tulsyan
Director Director

BHAVESH N PATEL™
Proprietor

M No. 026669

UDIN: | 22026669ALFIOV5742
Place : Chennai

Date: 18th May, 2022

Din : 00632864

IN

=
Parvati Soni
Company Secretary

Din : 00632802




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD
o CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022
- Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31/03/2022 31/03/2021
(Rs.)
A. |CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax and Exzfacrdinary Items 13,429,380 10,392,257
ADJUSTED FOR:
Depreciation 4,806,666 4,384,702
Profit{Loss) on Sale of Asset 163,703 137,066.00
Interest and Other Finarice Charges 22,620,620 26,542,650
Interest / Dividend / Rent Income 317,757 (139,888)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 41,338,126 41,316,787
ADJUSTED FOR:
Trade Receivables (15,312,243) (101,665,674)
Trade Payabies/Currenl Liabilities (15,690,740) 122,771,807
Inventories 13,807,643 (14,300,785)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 24,142,786 48,122,135
f Income tax paid - N
‘ NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 24,142,786 48,122,135
B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase Of Fixed Assets (12,044,668) (1,801,702)
Interest / Dividend / Rent Income (317,757) 139,888
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances (166,554) 140,336
Sale of Fixed Assets 13,980,734 (564,131.66)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 1,451,755 (2,085,610)
; C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
| Proceeds From Borrowings (Net) (966,960) (19,322,943)
i Interest and Other Finance Charges (22,620,620) (26,542,650)
|
! NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (23,587,581) (45,865,594)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 2,006,960 170,932
Casn and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year v 342,737 227,804
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 274,430 342,737
INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN C/£SH EQUIVALENTS (68,307) 114,933
( Previous figures have been regrouped whereever necessary to conform to the
current year's presentation)
Cash on hand 22,295.00 44,944.00
In Bank Accounts 252,135.00 297,793.00
Total 274,430.00] 342,737.00
For C A Patel & Patel On behalf of the Board
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CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As At Mar 31, 2021
5 : NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Long teﬁn Unquoted, at cost
Shamrao Vittal Co-operative Bank 2,500 2,500
25 (25) Equity Shares of Rs.100
2,500 2,500
16 : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred Tax Liability
- On Account of Depreciation - -
Deferred Tax Asset
- On Account of Disallowances and Losses carried forward 79,391,679 82,330,521
under Income Tax Act
79,391,679 82,330,521
7: OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Deposit with Government Authorities 1,666,168 1,832,722
MAT credit entittement 3,803,652 3,803,652
Advance for capital Assets - -
5,469,820 5,636,374
18 INVENTORIES
(As valued and certified by the Management)
Raw Materials
Iron Ore R
Coal 32,841,255 16,810,727
Dolomite § i
Stock of Stores & Spares 7,387,765 7,617,230
Einished Goods
Sponge Iron Lumps 4,514,650 6,512,441
Dolochar - Scrap B -
Iron Ore Fines - Scrap 75,853 71,483
Stock-in-trade 88,271 88,271
44,907,794 31,100,151

Parsn Manere \-

Anna Salai,

A Wing,
No.?




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As At Mar 31,2021

|

9 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured)
- Debts outstanding for less than six months
Considered Good
Considered Doubtful
- Other debts
Considered Good
(Refer Annexure 1)
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

10 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES

i) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand
Balances with scheduled banks
- in Current Accounts

ii) Other Bank Balances

- in Deposit Accounts

11: SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received)
-Unsecured considered good:
Deposits
Advance for supplies and expenses
Prepaid expenses
Balance with Government Authorities
Advance Tax (net of Provisions)
Staff Advance
-Unsecured considered doubtful:
vi) Advance Recoverable in Cash or in Kind

Less: Provision for Dobubtful Advances

104,673,778 114,752,965
1,704,996 1,704,996
513,508 513,508
106,892,283 116,971,469
5,673,126 5,673,126
101,219,157 111,298,343
22,295 44,944
2,180 2,180
249,955 295,613
274,430 342,737
200,000 230,000
1,368,727 6,675,727
2,098,251 728,526
(113,503) (101,749)
3,650,605 4,898,633
- 6,000
2,226,878 2,226,878
9,430,958 14,664,015
2,226,878 2,226,878
7,204,080 12,437,137




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars ' As at March 31, 2022 As At Mar 31, 2021
12 : SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital
70,00,000 (70,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 70,000,000 70,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
64,89,200 (64,89,200) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 64,892,000 64,892,000
64,892,000 64,892,000

(a) All the Equity Shares carry equal rights and obligations including for Dividend and with respect to Voting rights.

(b) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares :

Name of Share holder No. of Shares - % held No. of Shares - % held
Tulaysan NEC Ltd 64,89,200 - 100% 64,89,200 - 100%
13 : OTHER EQUITY
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year (227,666,659) (205,022,911)
Add: Profit for the Year after tax 10,490,537 (22,643,749)
Less: Adjustment relating to Fixed Assets - -
Balance as at the end of the year (217,176,121) (227,666,660)
14 :LLONG TERM BORROWINGS
| Secured Loans
| From Banks
Term Loans from Banks 0
Modern Assist Loan - SVCB 8,637,198
Kotak Bank 1,331,560 2,298,520
i Unsecured Loans
w From Related Parties -
From Others 5,377,593 5,377,593
15,346,351 7,676,113

A. Nature of Security:

Term Loan : Secured by First charge on land situated in New Gummudipundi Village, Thiruvallur Dist, factory building with |
other constructions there on and Hypothecation of P& M situated therein. Personal guarantee of the promoters &
the corporate guarantee of M/s Tulsyan NEC Ltd.

B. Terms of Repayment:
Atthe end of the year, term loan outstanding of Rs. 1,214 lakhs has been converted into over draft by the bankers. Hence the entire outst ndlng has bean treatcd Qul ‘b

Current Component under 'Other Current Liabilities'. e




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As At Mar 31, 2021

B. Non Current and Current Components of Long Term Borrowings:

Non Current Components
Term Loans from Banks

Vehicle Loans from Banks
Loans from Related Parties
Loans from Others

Current Components
Term Loans from Banks
Vehicle Loan from Banks
Loans from Related Parties

Total A+B

15 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Working Capital Loans from Banks:
Shamro Vital Co-operative Bank

A. Nature of Security:

16 : TRADE PAYABLES

Sundry Creditors :
- For Supplies and Services
- For Expenses and Others
(Refer Annexure 2)

17: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Component of Long Term Borrowings
Interest Payable on FITL
Duties & Taxes Payable
Interest Accrued and Due on Term Loans
Advances from Customers
Provision for Current Tax

18 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Expenses

Secured against hypothecation of paid Stocks and book debts not exceeding 90 Days and linkage on the factory land & building.

364,600 1,961,013
5,377,593 5,377,593
5,742,193 7,338,606
966,960 337,507
966,960 337,507
6,709,153 7,676,113
198,217,361 198,163,996
198,217,361 198,163,996
64,521,452 77,449,918
16,034,190 6,328,691
80,565,642 83,778,609

966,960 337,507

10,654,331 24,275,107
158,662,773 157,850,955
170,284,065 182,463,569
2,660,094 2,318,902
2,660,094 2,318,902




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars For the year ended March 31,| For the year ended March 31,
- 2022 2021
1S : INCOMEFROM OPERATIONS
Gross Sales
Finished Producis 998,535,691 696,330,157
Raw Materials 850,200 402,740
Conversion Charges Received - -
Others 11,730,558 8,819,471
1,011,116,449 705,552,368
Less: Excise Duty - -
Goods and Service Tax - -
1,011,116,449 705,552,368
20 : OTHER INCOME
Interest Income (TDS Rs.15,908 /- (PY: 15,908)) 317,550 139,888
Insurance Claims - -
Dividend 300 -
Discount Received -
Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset 163,703 -
Miscellaneous Income (93) (8)
481,460 139,880
21: MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stock 16,882,209 5,361,036
Add: Purchases 924,137,744 622,960,171
941,019,954 628,321,207
Less : Closing Stock 32,917,108 16,882,209
908,102,846 611,438,998 |
22 : CHANGES IN INVENTORY
Finished Goods
Opening Stock 6,600,712 3,716,883
Closing Stock 4,602,921 6,600,712
Variance in Excise Duty on Closing Stock of Finished Goods - -
1,997,791 (2,883,829)
Purchase of Stock-in-trade - .
23 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages & Allowances 3,620,507 4,025,495
Bonus 69,876 -
Company's contribution PF & ESI 115,172 104,625
Slall Wellare 104,136 91,202
3,909,691 4,221,402
24 : FINANCE CHARGES
Bank Charges - -
Interest on Bank Loans 22,551,827 26,632,934
Interest others 68,793 (90,284)
22,620,620 26,542,650




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- For the year ended March | For the year ended March 31,
Particulars 31,2022 2021
25 : OTHER EXPENSES
A. Factory overheads
AMC Charges 108,600 80,600
Electricity Charges 14,342,933 12,169,068
Stores & Spares Consumed 8,140,451 8,050,444
Freight Inward - Others - -
Weighment Charges 17,480 3,730
Labour Charges 13,221,107 12,707,983
Local Conveyance 36,640 20,390
Postage & Courier 7,060 4,375
Printing & Stationery 79,826 57,295
Repairs & Maintenance:
Plant & Machinery 558,399 205,540
Electrical 178,495 274,168
Building 1,968,797 455,263
Others 226,657 248,960
Security Charges 1,923,251 1,813,596
Telephone Charges 30,594 34,703
Testing Charges 168,430 118,985
Office Maintenance 81,033 83,804
Vehicle Maintenance 284,403 83,182
Sub total (A) 41,374,157 36,412,086
B. Administration & Selling expenses
Rent, Rates & Taxes 13,724,211 12,474,233
Audit Remuneration:
For Statutory Audit 80,000 2,500
For Tax Audit & Others 80,000 255,000
Internal Audit Fees 204,000 136,000
Travelling & Conveyance 314,039 224,575
Pooja Expenses 15,884 12,607
Computers Maintenance 8,668 8.520
Legal & Professional Charges 26,600 232,500
Books and periodicals 2,200
Bad debts/advances written off - -
Loss on sale/write off -assets - 137,066
Brokerage and Commission 60,000 85,555
Transportation Sales 21,802 395,027
General Expenses, Donations 221,810 277,010
Bank Charges 399,061 565,681
Insurance 198,484 377,709
Sub total (B) 15,356,759 15,183,983
Total (A+B) 56,730,916 51,596,069
26 : EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Profit After Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders () 10,490,537 (22,643,749)
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares Outstanding 6,489,200 6,489,200
as at the end of the year
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (') 1.62 (3.49)




CHITRAKOOT STEEL AND POWER PVT LTD

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31.03.2022

Note - 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION:

The Company was incorporated on October 21, 2003, and is in the business of Manufacturing of Sponge
Iron.

Note - 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a.

Statement of compliance:
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting

standards (‘lnd AS"), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Up to the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (previous GAAP), which includes
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

These are the Company’s first Ind AS financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2016.

Basis of Freparation:-

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. :

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting
standards (‘Ind AS'), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Upto the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with
the requirement of Indian General Accepted Accounting Policies, which includes Standards notified under
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as “Previous GAAP".

These financial statements are the Company's first Ind AS standalone financial statements.

Cempany's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('), which is also its functional currency.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Sales are accounted net of trade discount and include Sales Tax Excise Duties and Goods and Service Tax.
Revenue from Direct sales is accounted for on the basis of dispatches. In respect of Consignment sales,
revenue is recognized after the confirmation of sale from the Consignment Agent.




Interest
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking lnto account the amcunt outstanding and the rate
applicable.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's
functional currency. In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other
than the Company's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for theirintended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee Benefits
Provident Fund:
The Company contributes to the Statutory Provident fund in accordance with the Employees’ Provident Fund

and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The plan is a defined contributions plan and the contribution paid or
payable is recognized as an expense in the period in which the employee renders service

Gratuity:

In respect of Gratuity, no provision has been made in the accounts for the actuarial liability for future
payment of Gratuity. Gratulty payments are charged to Profit and Loss account in the year in which
payments are made.

Taxes on Income

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.




Current tax: .

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’
as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s Provision for current
tax is made based .on the liability computed in accordance with the relevant tax rates and tax laws. current
tax is calculated ust3g tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business

combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer prebable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realized, based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as
at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment:

Land and buildings held for use in the supply or production of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

PPE in the course of construction for supply, production or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalized in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and cquipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.




Category of Asset Estimated
useful lives

Factory Buildings 30 Years
Bore well & Road 10 Years
Plant & equipment 8 Years
Electrical & Work Equipments 10 Years
Weigh Bridge 15 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Mopeds 8 Years
Motor vehicles/other assets 10 Years
Office equipment 5 Years
Lab Equipments 10 Years

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-ine method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. :

Intangible assets:
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Category of Asset Estimated

useful lives
Software and website 5 Years
development costs

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists; the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent




of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories:

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in-first-out basis. Cost includes the purchase price, non-refundable taxes and delivery handling cost. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. '

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.




m. Financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of
allocating interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts/payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Financial assets:

A financial asset is any asset that is:
(a) cash;
(b) an equity instrument of another entity;
(c) a contractual right:
(i) to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
(ii) to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially favorable to the Company; or
(d) a contract that will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments and is:
(i) a non-derivative for which the Company is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of the
entity's own equity instruments; or
(ii) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except

for debt instruments that are designated as at ‘fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)" on initial
recognition):

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Debt instruments (except for debt instruments that are designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition) that
meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at “fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI)":

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractuai cash flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL.

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising
foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at
amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss and
other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assels are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive income'.
When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

A debt instrument that meets the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases.

Debt instruments classified as FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Equity

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on
initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for
investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Equity instruments at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains
or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or
loss incorporates any dividend earned on the financial asset and is included under ‘Other income'. Dividend
on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established
and the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend
can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial

asset not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all
cash shortfalls). The Company estimates. cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial




instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that
financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses considering the nature of industry and the deferred payment schemes operated.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss
allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience
and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied
to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognized in other comprehensive income
and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the halance sheet.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise th
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received. ‘

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the ‘sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if such
gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to he
recognized and the part that is. ﬁO‘anger recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.




Foreign exchange gains and losses on financial assets

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreigncurrency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For foreign currency denominated
financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognized in profit

or loss.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in
foreign currency rates are recognized in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments aretreated as
financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortized cost are
recognized in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

- Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is any liability that is:

(@) a contractual obligation :

(i) to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
(if) to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

(b) a contract that will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments and is:

(i) a non-derivative for which the Company is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the
Company's own equity instruments; or

(if) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own equity instruments. For this
purpose, rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments
for a fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments if the Company offers the rights, options
or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners of the same class of its own non-derivative equity
instruments. Apart from the aforesaid, the equity conversion option embedded in a convertible bond




denominated in foreign currency to acquire a fixed number of the Company's own equity
instruments is an equity instrument if the exercise price is fixed in any currency.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL: .

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition
or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the
Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are
measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognized by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

a) it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

b) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company

manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

¢) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognized by
the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

a) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

b) the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided
internally on that basis; or

c) it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' / ‘Other expenses' line item as appropriate.

However, for financial liabilities not held-for-trading that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an

accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credlt risk are recognized in
profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognized in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognized in other
comprehensive Income are reflected immediately in relained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are
designated by the Company as-at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss.




Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that
are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Interest expense thet is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included under ‘Finance costs’.

Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse

the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of;

- the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and
- the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on financial liabilities
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the
end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised
cost of the instruments and are recognized in ‘Other income'.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as
at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized in
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Cash flow statements:

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term balances
(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Cash flows from operating activities are reporled using lhe indirect method, whereby profit before extra-
ordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.




q.

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit /
(loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares v:hich could have been issued
on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the
outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits /
reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Insurance Claims:
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the
extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate

collection.

Goods and Service Tax input credit:
Goods and Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service
received is accounted and when there is reasonable certainty in availing / utilizing the credits.

Operating cycle.
Based on the nature of services / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of

assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

First-time adoption — mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions:

Overall principle
The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2016 (the transition date)

by recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognizing items of
assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS
as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.
However, this principle is subject to the certain mandatory exception and certain optional exemptions availed
by the Company as detailed below.

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Company has elected the exemption of previous GAAP carrying value for its Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets recognized as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) as deemed cost.




NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. Contingent Liabilities

S.NO Particulars

maintenance of proper records
under Central Excise - RG
23A.

Amount Forum where the | Relevant financial year /
(Rs.in dispute is Pending | Period.
Lakhs)

(i) Penalty & Fine for Non | 63.35 SVLDR,Chennai 2013-14 and 2014-15

(In Rupees)
Details 2021-22 2020-21
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 68,55,065 68,55,065

28. Income Tax:

Income tax assessments for and up to the Assessment year 2020 - 21 have been completed. There are no tax
arrears and no proceedings are pending against the company in respect of these years.

29, Auditor's Remuneration:

(In Rupees)
Details 2021-22 2020-21
For Statutory Audit 75,000 75,000
For Tax & Other matters 98,500 98,500




30. Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

The Company has not received any information from the Suppliers as regards their status under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and hence disclosure requirements in this regard
as per schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, could not be provided. However, no interest has been accrued /
paid during the year to any of the suppliers.

31. CONSUMPTION OF MATERIALS, SALE OF FINISHED GOODS, OPENING STOCK AND CLOSING
STOCK:

A) MATERIALS CONSUMPTION:

(In Rupees)
PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21
RAW MATERIALS:
IRON ORE 54,15,59,676 46,06,08,034
COAL 36,34,21,836 15,03,59,379
DOLOMITE 31,21,333 24,91,280
B) FINISHED GOODS:
PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21
Sales
99,85,36,691 6,96,330,157
Sponge iron - Fines & Lumps
Raw materials 850,200 4,02,740
Scrap 1,17,30,558 88,19,471
6,96,330,157
Conversion Charges -
Total 1,01,11,16,449 7,05,55,268
C) CLOSING STOCK:
Raw Materials
Iron Ore 1,17,36,626
Coal 2,08,62,940 2,167,266
Dolomite 24,1,682 71,483
Finished Goods
Sponge Iron 45,14,650 6,512,441.00
Scrap 88,271 88,271
Stock-in-trade - -




32. Value of raw materials consumed

(Rs. In lakhs)
Details 202122 2020-21
Value Percentage Value Percentage
a) Indigenous 9081.02 100%- 6134.59 100%-
b) Imported* - -
TOTAL - -
Note:

a. The consumption value includes freight and other charges incurred in connection with the purchase of raw
material.

33. Disclosure in respect of Related parties pursuant to Accounting Standard 18:

a) Holding Company ~ : M/s. Tulsyan NEC Ltd (Extent of Holding: 100%)

Transaction with related parties:

During the year the following transactions were carried out with the aforesaid parties in the ordinary course of

business:
(Amount in lakhs)

Transaction Party 2021-22 2020-21
Sales Tulsyan NEC Ltd 237.36 1281.75
Tulsyan Smelters P Ltd 9486.55 2773.01
Purchases (Raw Materials, Tulsyan NEC Ltd 117.67 193.98
Stores, Freight & Power) Tulsyan Smelters P Ltd 140.50
Services Rendered Tulsyan NEC Ltd - -

Balance as at year end :

Balance Receivable Tulsyan Smelters P Ltd 1046.73 083.27

Balance Payable Tulsyan NEC Ltd 1486.63 1578.51

TA Wi

Fioar, Flat No




34. Foreign Exchange Earnings: Export Sales : Rs. NIL (Previous year: Rs. NIL)

35. CIF Value of Imports:

Raw Materials : Rs.Nil(Previous Year: Rs.Nil)
Components & Spares : Nil (Previous Year: Nil)

36. Sponge Iron manufacture is the only reportable primary business segment. The Company caters only domestic
market and hence there are no reportable geographic segments. Therefore, segment information as required
by the AS-17 of ICAl is not applicable.

37. The Company has initiated legal action for recovery of the amount of Rs. 21,66,385/- paid to M/s. Yeses
Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd., Hyderabad, to whom a fabrication work contract had been awarded and the said
contractor failed to complete the work. At the same time, this Contractor has made a counter claim against the
Company for a sum of Rs. 68,55,065/- and the same is rejected by the Company.

The management reasonably expects that, there will not be any Liability, with respect to the claim made
against the company, and hence no provision is considered necessary.

38. Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified, wherever necessary to Conform to the Current
year's presentation.

39. Figures shown in the account have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

For C A Patel & Patel
Chartered Accountants

BHAVESHN PATEL Pavati Soni Sanjay Agarwalla anjay Tulsyan

Proprietor Company Secretary Director Director
M No. 026669 ey Din: 00632864 Din: 00632802

Place: Chennai ¢
Date: 18" May, 2022




Chitrakoot Steel and Power P Ltd
Disclosure Of Ratios By Companies as per new Schedule Ill Amendment

S.NO. Ratio Formula (4 PY Reasons for Changes
wurernt
C i Assets/Current
1 urrent Ratio sets/Curm 0.34 033 2%|-
2 |Debt-Equity Ratio Total DebtTotal | (1 49)  (1.26) 11%|-
Equity
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratif ~ Net Operating 0.09 0.07 19%|-
Income/Total Debt
Service
. Profit before
Return on Equity Net lncom'e/Avg‘ Exceptional items and
4 Shareholder's Equity | (o gg) (0.06) 389%|Taxes negative.
5 Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods 5.97 6.38 -6%]-
Sold/Avg Inventory
6 Trade Recievable Turnover Annual Credit
Ratio Sales/Avg Trade 2.38 2.98 -20%|-
Recievables
7 Trade Payable Turnover Ra Annual Credit
Purchases/Avg Trade 2.81 2.59 9%|-
Payables
A [ Net Turn Over and
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio Sales /V?/glrjljngeCapital (3.39) (2.26) 50%|Payables increased
9 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit/ Net 0.01 (0.03) -132%|Deferred Tax effect
Sales
Turn Over and
10 Return on Capital Employed EBIT/(Total Assets - (0.09) (0.06) 38%|Payables increased

Current Liabilities)
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